
 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 5, 2025.  
 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday February 5, 2025 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
TO ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting will be held at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay 
Boulevard. 
 
In addition to physical attendance at the address indicated above, the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District is offering the following teleconferencing options as an alternative means for the public to 
participate in this meeting. 
 
TO ATTEND BY ZOOM WEBINAR: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85454370841 
 
TO ATTEND BY PHONE: +1 (669) 444 9171 or +1 (719) 359 4580 WEBINAR ID: 854 5437 0841  

 
 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
3. Roll Call. 

 
 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board 
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the 
Directors. 
 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2025. 

 
 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report. 
 2. Sheriff’s Office Report. 
 3. Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Report.  
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Carolyn Graham • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Lesley Belcher 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 5, 2025.  
 - Pg.2 

 

 
E. MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 
  

 
F. PRESENTATIONS 

 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Sewer Line Access Road Agreement for the Newport Pointe 

 Subdivision. 
 2. Discussion and Possible Action to Amend the Herwit Engineering General Services Contract to   
  add $50,000. 
 3. Discussion and Possible Action to Set the Date and Time of the 2025 Annual Board Workshop. 
 
 
H.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
 1. Landscape Update. 
 
 
I.     GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 1.  Assistant General Manager Hiring. 
 
 
J. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 1. Standing Committee Reports. 

a. Finance Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Ashley Porter) February 5, 
2025. 

b. Water and Wastewater Committee (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Carolyn Graham) 
February 5, 2025. 

 
 
K. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 1. BUSD – December 17, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 2. CCC Airport Committee – December 5, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 3. BUSD – January 23, 2025 – (Director Kevin Graves). 
 4. LAFCO – January 22, 2025 – (Director Kevin Graves). 
 
 
L.  CORRESPONDENCE 
   
  
M.  LEGAL REPORT 
 
 
N.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
O.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on February 19, 2025 beginning at 7:00 
p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
 

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2025 - Pg.1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025 7:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Called business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Director Belcher led the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Roll Call was taken, and all members were present.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)

• Richard Palmer: Asked for a moment of silence for the southern California residents and firefighters.
He has been a resident for 35 years.  His dog uses the island as well as local children. Asked to take
a pause in the project.

• Tara Bauman: Taking out the grass and installing hard scape will impact the residents.  She would
like to rezone the property.

• Barbara Elliott: She is asking to stop working on island until alternative is discussed. She has a
petition with residents against the change. She would like the Town to increase the communication
with residents. She cited water regulations.

• Dave Miller: Questioned permits, noticing and bid process.
• Nicole Key: Would have liked community to have had more input into the design.
• Todd Scruggs: Kids, families use the area for parties.  He would like to rezone as park space.
• Speaker with a dog: 4-year resident of DB. She has four dogs that use the island. She wants proof of

notice.
• Kirk Lawrence: He is pleased with the solar project. He would like phase 2 to be net zero. He lives

on Discovery Pt. and would have liked the residents to have been given more input on island
landscape.

• Last speaker loves what the Board is doing and told them to “keep it up.”

Landscape Update was done next due to the amount of comments on Landscaping. 

Presented by Landscape Manager, Monica Gallo. 

• Clipper Drive steel edging was installed.
• Cornell Park grass is growing in and has been gently mowed.
• Clean-up at Slifer Park.
• Bixler Road median work was completed.
• Bixler Road and Regatta Drive entrance was completed.
• Sussex Ct. clean-up.
• Regatta Park entrance  project was completed.
• Yacht and Foghorn overflow parking lot project was completed.

Directors had several clarifying questions re: landscape issues. 

• President Graham asked about the decision to go toward more of a dry scape for
landscaping. GM Breitstein answered that Discovery Bay is following government codes,

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Carolyn Graham • Vice-President – Bryon Gutow  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Lesley Belcher 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2025 - Pg.2 

 

mandates and regulations. 
• Director Porter asked if Hofmann designated the use of land many years ago.  GM 

Breitstein was not sure. 
• President Graham asked about the landscape master plan. GM Breitstein said it is being 

developed to follow state regulations as well as deal with budgetary and staffing constraints. 
• President Graham inquired about the discontinuation of bark.  GM Breitstein stated that 

bark fades and blows away.   
• President Graham inquired about the underground utilities under the various islands.  GM 

Breitstein stated there are water main lines, sewer main lines and all the laterals that go to 
each residential home in the area. 

• President Graham asked of potential cost to stop the island projects.  GM Breitstein stated 
there would be demobilization costs, remobilization costs, product change cost, and 
irrigation cost.  The rock was also purchased in bulk to get lower pricing. 

• Vice-President Gutow stated he has been on the Board for six years and on the Parks and 
Recreation Committee for six years and this median project has been talked about for 
years. There were public meetings held for input from the residents. 

 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from December 18, 2024. 
2.  Monthly Disbursement Report - December 2024. 
3.  Elect Board Officers for Calendar Year 2025 – Carolyn Graham President and Bryon Gutow Vice-

 President. 
  

Vice-President Gutow made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar. 
Director Graves seconded. 
Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5,  NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0. 

 
 
D. PRESENTATIONS 

1. Veolia. 
 
Presented by Project Manager Anthony Harper. 
 

• 540 safe working days. 
• All wells are active. 
• All filters are active. 
• Hydrant flushing and valve exercising is in progress. 
• All lift stations are active. 

 
 

E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 1. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Sponsor Agreement with the California Conservation Corps, 

 Delta Center (CCC). 
 
 Presented by Landscape Manager Monica Gallo. 
 

• The Town has been utilizing outside contractors for streetscape work and park landscaping since 
2021 in lieu of hiring an additional full-time landscape worker. 

• The California Conservation Corps. will provide a team of 5-6 crew members for 40 hours a week for 
12 weeks for a cost of $74,000. 

 
  Public comment: 
 

• The speaker asked if the contracted workers would be background checked. 
 

Director Graves made a motion to approve the sponsor agreement and execute a contract with the 
California Conservation Corps, Delta Center, for an amount of $74,000.00. 
Vice-President Gutow seconded. 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2025 - Pg.3 

 

Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5,  NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0. 
 
 
   
 2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Board Member Appointments to Standing Committees. 
 
   The Board selected Committees for a two-year appointment.  Selections for the Parks and Recreation, 

  Finance, Communications and Internal Operations Committees were made by each Board    
  Member in order of Member seniority: President Graham, Vice-President Gutow, Director Graves,  
  Director Porter and Director Belcher. 

 
   Water and Wastewater Committee selection was made based pursuant to Board Bylaws which state  

  that the senior member currently on the WWC shall have the first-choice option to either remain on the 
  WWC for an additional two-year term or participate in the selection process to choose another   
  Standing Committee. By this formula, priority selection was Director Graves, President Graham, Vice- 
  President Gutow, Director Porter, Director Belcher. 

 
  Standing Committee Name  Director Appointed    Director Appointed 
  Finance      Director Graves    Director Porter 
  Water and Wastewater   Director Graves    President Graham 
  Internal Operations    Director Porter    Director Belcher 
  Parks and Recreation   Vice-President Gutow   President Graham 
  Communications    Director Belcher    Vice-President Gutow 
 
 

Director Graves made a motion to accept the standing committee selections. 
Director Porter seconded. 
Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5,  NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0. 

 
  
 3. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Board Member Appointments to Regional Committees. 
 
  The Board selected Regional Committees based on Member seniority: President Graham, Vice-

 President Gutow, Director Graves, Director Porter and Director Belcher. 
 
  Regional Committee Name    Primary Director      Alternate Director 
  Contra Costa County Aviation   Bryon Gutow       Ashley Porter      
  Advisory Committee  
 
  Contra Costa County Code    Lesley Belcher      Bryon Gutow  
  Enforcement   
 
  Contra Costa County Special    Carolyn Graham      Kevin Graves 
  Districts Association  
 
  Contra Costa County Fire    Carolyn Graham      Bryon Gutow 
  Protection District Liaison 
 
  East County Water      Ashley Porter      Carolyn Graham 
  Management Association 
 
  LAFCO Liaison      Kevin Graves      Lesley Belcher 
 
  Police Services (P6) Committee   Bryon Gutow       Lesley Belcher 
  
  School District Representative   Kevin Graves      Carolyn Graham 
  Liaison 
 
  Regional Transportation Agencies   Ashley Porter      Kevin Graves 
  
 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2025 - Pg.4 

 

   
               Director Graves made a motion to affirm the representatives chosen by the Board to include            
 compensation for attending the meeting. 

        Director Porter seconded. 
        Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5, NOES  0, ABSTAINED 0, ABSENT 0. 
 

  Director Graves made a comment that as a courtesy, each director inform the alternate if they are  
 not able to attend the meeting. 

 
 
F.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
 1. Hoffman Fund Update. 
 
 Update given by Finance Manager Margaret Moggia. 
 

• Hofmann fund has currently spent $488,000.  
• $378,000 committed. 
• $504,000 remaining. 

 
 2. Landscape Update. 
 
 Update was given after public comment. 
  
G. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 None. 
 
H. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 None. 
  
I. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 None. 
 
J. CORRESPONDENCE 
 1. Supervisor Diane Burgis – January 3, 2025. 
 2. Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and Development Memo – Dated November 6, 2024. 
 
K.  LEGAL REPORT 
 None. 
 
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 1. President Graham would like Legal Counsel Andy Pinasco to give an overview of what it entails to  
  become a city. Director Graves questioned the necessity. Vice-President Gutow asked if there was an  
  additional cost from legal to acquire this information. Board agrees to bring to a Board of Directors  
  meeting for discussion when a cost is established. 
 2. The Board discussed whether they would like to revisit the island landscape project at a future meeting. 
  Legal counsel stated that the project may be complete before the next scheduled meeting.  Legal   
  counsel stated that a special meeting could be held to address the item. The Board chose not to add  
  item to a future Board meeting agenda. 

 
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourned at 8:47p.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on February 5, 2025 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 

C1



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Sewer Line Access Road Agreement for the Newport 

Pointe Subdivision. 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2025 
 
Prepared By: Mike Yeraka, Projects Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

a. Discuss the Sewer Line Access Road Agreement with Century Communities for Access to the Sewer Line 
Serving the Newport Pointe Subdivision. 

b. Authorize the General Manager to execute the attached agreement. 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The original plans for installation of the sewer line to serve the Newport Pointe subdivision did not include a way for 
the Town to properly maintain the sewer line. The Developer (Century Communities) has submitted an application 
to the County to install an access road for the Town to maintain the sewer line as shown on the attached Exhibit. 
The timing of approval from the County for the access road is uncertain and the developer wishes to move forward 
with installing the sewer line so they can start building homes. The attached agreement was prepared in order to 
accommodate the developer’s request and provide certainty that the access road will be constructed. 
 
In general, the agreement includes the following: 
 

1. The access road will be built at the expense of the Developer. 
2. The Developer will deposit $150,000 with the Town as a guarantee that the road will be built. 
3. In the event the Developer does not build the access road, the Town will have the right to build the road 

using the $150,000 plus any additional funds that may be needed at the expense of the Developer. 
4. The Developer will provide an easement to the Town for the sewer line and access road. 
5. The Developer will be responsible for maintaining the sewer line and the subdivision sewer system at their 

expense until the access road is completed. 
6. The Developer will be responsible for paying any costs or fines associated with any sewer overflows that 

may occur while they are responsible for maintenance. 
7. The sewer line, access road, as well as the subdivision water and sewer systems will have a three-year 

warranty after the Town’s acceptance. 
 
All costs incurred by the Town are paid by the Developer.  
 
Specific Recommended Action: 
 

a. Discuss the Sewer Line Access Road Agreement with Century Communities for Access to the Sewer Line 
Serving the Newport Pointe Subdivision. 

b. Authorize the General Manager to execute the attached license agreement. 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
G1 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount Requested:  N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available? N/A Developer Funded 
Prog/Fund #   Category:  N/A 
 
 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
The Board authorized the General Manager to execute the Pre-Annexation Agreement for the project at the March 
6, 2019, Board Meeting. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
1. Access Road Exhibit. 
2. Sewer Line Access Road Agreement. 



X

X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
Slifer 
Drive

Newport 
Lane

G1-1



QB\93748521.2 

1 

#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

SEWER LINE ACCESS ROAD AGREEMENT 

 This SEWER LINE ACCESS ROAD AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made effective as of 
January ___, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) by and between TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California (the “Town”), 
and CENTURY COMMUNITIES OF CALIFORNIA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(“Century”). 

RECITALS 

A. Century owns property in the Town of Discovery Bay, Contra Costa County, California
more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Century Project”), which Century intends 
to develop as a residential community.  

B. The Town worked with the previous owner of the Century Project to develop a sewer lift
station option, a sewer line in the road option and a sewer line through the property to the north of the 
Century Project option to provide sanitary sewer service to the Century Project. The previous owner of the 
Century Project and Century both chose to pursue the sewer line through the property to the north option 
to service the Century Project (the “Sewer Line”). 

C. After the Town approved the plans for the Sewer Line, the Town came to realize that those
plans were incomplete as they did not provide for the Town to access the Sewer Line or manholes to perform 
maintenance and repairs.  The Town then informed Century that Century needed to install a gravel access 
road near the Sewer Line to facilitate the Town accessing the manholes to inspect, maintain and repair the 
Sewer Line as needed (the “Access Road”). 

D. Century agreed to install the Access Road and obtained the Town’s approval of an Access
Road plan attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Access Road Plan”). 

E. After the Town approved the Access Road Plan, Century submitted the Access Road Plan
to the County who indicated that the Access Road Plan needed to go through the County approval process. 

F. Century and the Town have agreed to proceed with planning the construction of the Access
Road, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
in this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, Century and the Town agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Access Road Plan.  The Town acknowledges that the Town has approved the Access Road
Plan in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Century, at its sole cost, shall continue to use reasonable 
diligent efforts to process and obtain County approval of the Access Road Plan (the “County Approval”).  
Without limiting the foregoing, Century will comply with any requirements or mitigation measures that are 
required by the County as a condition of County Approval.  The Town will, at no cost to the Town, 
reasonably cooperate with such processing including, without limitation, signing any submittals or other 
documents reasonably required by the County or providing any other documentation supporting County 
Approval. 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

2 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

2. Construction Funds.  Within fourteen (14) business days after mutual execution of this 
Agreement, Century will deliver to the Town, by either check or wire, the amount of $150,178.30 (the 
“Construction Funds”), as security for the construction of the Access Road.  The Town will track the 
funds in an account separate from Century’s current deposit account. The Town shall continue to deduct its 
actual expenses that the Town incurs in connection with the Town’s performance under or enforcement of 
this Agreement from the deposit account that Century currently has with the Town and Century shall 
continue to replenish that deposit account upon notification by the Town.  In addition, if at any time the 
Town determines that the Construction Funds then held are insufficient to complete the Access Road, then 
Century will deposit any additional amount reasonably determined by the Town within thirty (30) days 
after the Town’s written notice.  The Town will (a) release the Construction Funds to the Century as 
reimbursement for construction and completion of the Access Road in accordance with Section 3.b and, (b) 
if the Town exercises its takeover right, then use the Construction Funds for construction of the Access 
Road in Accordance with Section 3.c.  Within fifteen (15) days after written request from Century, the 
Town shall provide an accounting of any deposits, withdrawals, and then-current balance of the 
Construction Funds.   

 
3. Construction of Access Road.  Provided that the County approves the Access Road Plan, 

then Century will construct the Access Road in accordance with the approved Access Road Plan and all 
applicable local and State laws and regulations.  In the event of unforeseen site conditions, Century and the 
Town will work together to address any reasonable modifications to the Access Road Plan, and (1) Century 
shall implement all said modifications at Century’s expense required by the County, and (2) Century shall 
implement all said modifications at Century’s expenses required by the Town provided such Town-imposed 
modifications (a) remain substantially in conformance with the Access Road Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 
B, and (b) do not require any additional approval from the County.   
 

a. Commencement and Completion Time Frames.  Century shall commence construction of 
the Access Road within thirty (30) days after obtaining County Approval, and will use 
commercially reasonable diligent efforts to complete the Access Road within sixty (60) 
days after commencement; provided, however, the commencement and completion 
deadlines are subject to a day-for-day extension for any period in which Century is unable 
to perform any construction due to  any unforeseen force majeure event including, without 
limitation: (a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake or explosion; (c) war, invasion, 
hostilities (whether war is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot or other civil unrest; 
(d) government order or law; (e) actions, embargoes or blockades in effect on or after the 
date of this Agreement; (f) action by any governmental authority; (g) national or regional 
emergency; (h) strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns or other industrial disturbances; (i) 
epidemic, pandemic or similar influenza or bacterial infection (which is defined by the 
United States Center for Disease Control as virulent human influenza or infection that may 
cause global outbreak, epidemic or pandemic, or serious illness); (j) emergency state; (k) 
shortage of adequate supplies and equipment; (l) shortage of power or transportation 
facilities; (m) inclement weather; and (n) other similar events beyond the reasonable 
control of Century.    
 

b. Reimbursement of Century’s Costs from Construction Fund.  Within twenty (20) days after 
the Town’s inspection and confirmation that Century has completed 50% of the Access 
Road (as evidenced by a written certification from the general contractor or engineer), the 
Town will release 50% of the Construction Funds to Century.  Within twenty (20) days 
after the Town’s inspection and confirmation that Century has completed the Access Road, 
the Town will release the remainder of the Construction Funds to Century. 
 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

3 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

c. Town’s Takeover Right.  In the event Century fails to commence or complete the Access 
Road within the time frames set forth in Section 3, and does not cure such failure within 
thirty (30) days after written notice from the Town, then the Town may, in its sole 
discretion, elect to take over construction of the Access Road.  In the event the Town 
exercises its takeover right, then the Town may  deduct from the Construction Funds all 
actual costs that the Town incurs in completing the Access Road.  Within thirty (30) after 
completion, the Town will provide an accounting of the Town’s actual costs in constructing 
the Access Road, and (i) if such actual costs are less than the Construction Funds, the Town 
will return any remaining Construction Funds to Century within twenty (20) days after 
delivering such accounting;  and (ii) if such actual costs exceed the Construction Funds, 
Century will reimburse the difference to the Town within twenty (20) days after receipt of 
such accounting. 

 
d. No County Approval.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the County 

refuses to approve the Access Road by August 22, 2025, then the Town shall undertake 
completing the Access Road as a Town project.  In such event, Century will at its sole cost, 
retain consultants approved by the Town to perform any analysis and prepare any 
documents under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as may be 
reasonably required by the Town acting as the Lead Agency on the project.  In addition, 
Century shall perform any mitigation measures as may be required by any applicable 
governmental agency (including any reasonable mitigation measures required by the 
Town) or a court of law to comply with CEQA.  Upon the Town’s notice that the Access 
Road has been approved as a Town project, Century shall cause the Access Road to be 
constructed in accordance with Section 3. 

 
e. Insurance. Before commencing work pursuant to any work described in this Agreement, 

Century shall obtain the insurance required under this Section and receive the approval of 
the Town’s General Manager or her designee as to form, amount and carrier.  Century shall 
maintain the insurance during the term of this Agreement.  The insurance shall name the 
Town as an additional insured and extend to the Town, its elective and appointive boards, 
commissions, officers, agents, employees and representatives and to the Century and each 
contractor and subcontractor performing work on the Century Project and Access Road. 
 

f. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Century shall maintain workers' compensation 
insurance for all persons employed at Century Project and Access Road project.  Century 
shall require each contractor and subcontractor similarly to provide workers' compensation 
insurance for their respective employees.  Century agrees to indemnify the Town for 
damage resulting from Century’s failure to take out and maintain such insurance. 

 
 

g. Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance.  Century shall maintain public liability 
insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 for injuries (including death) to any 
one person and subject to the same limit of any one occurrence. 
 

h. Evidence of Insurance.  Century shall furnish Town, concurrently with the execution of 
this Agreement, satisfactory evidence of the insurance required.  Century shall request that 
the carrier provide evidence that the carrier will give the Town at least ten (10) days' prior 
written notice of the cancellation or reduction in coverage of a policy (the “Insurance 
Notice Confirmation”).  However, the Century’s carrier has previously informed Century 
that it will not provide an Insurance Notice Confirmation.  Therefore, unless and until 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

4 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

Century delivers the Insurance Notice Confirmation, Century will be required to (i) give 
the Town at least ten (10) days’ prior written notice before Century takes any action to 
cancel or reduce coverage of a policy, and (ii) deliver to the Town any notice of 
cancellation or reduction of coverage that the carrier delivers to Century within three (3) 
business days after receipt.   
 

 
4. Sewer and Access Easement.  Within 90 days of execution of this Agreement, Century 

shall deliver to the Town a signed, notarized original of an easement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C, for access, use, maintenance and repair of the Access Road and Sewer Line the metes and bounds of 
which shall be as approved by the Town.   

 
5. Maintenance; Warranty.   Century has installed the water system for the Century Project 

(the “Water System”) and the sewer system for the Century Project (the “Sewer System”). The Sewer 
Line, and the Access Road will be installed in accordance with this Agreement.  The Water System, Sewer 
System, Sewer Line and Access Road are each hereinafter referred to in this Paragraph 5 individually as an 
“Improvement” and collectively as the “Improvements”.  Until such time as an Improvement is accepted 
by the Town, Century shall be responsible for and bear the risk of loss to such Improvement constructed or 
installed. Until such time as an Improvement is fully completed and accepted by Town, Century shall be 
solely responsible for the care, maintenance of, and any damage to such Improvement, in addition to paying 
any fines that may be imposed on the Town or Century by any governmental entity, including by the Town, 
or court having jurisdiction over the Improvements, inclusive of any expenses the Town may incur to 
resolve any sewer overflows, backups, or other necessary maintenance that Century fails to perform. Town 
shall not, nor shall any officer or employee thereof, be liable for any accident, loss, or damage, regardless 
of cause, happening or occurring to the work, or any Improvement prior to the completion and acceptance 
of such Improvement unless in the event of such officer’s or employee’s gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. All such risks shall be the responsibility of and are hereby assumed by Century. Upon 
acceptance of an Improvement, the Town will assume the responsibility to maintain the such Improvement.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Century will warrant that each Improvement is free from design or 
construction defects for a period expiring three (3) years after acceptance of such Improvement, and shall 
cause any necessary repairs to be made at the expense of Century.  For clarification, each Improvement 
may be accepted by the Town at different times, and in such event the three (3) year warranty period for 
each Improvement shall expire at different times based on the acceptance date for such Improvement. 

 
6. Century Project Development.  Within two (2) business days after mutual execution of this 

Agreement and the Town’s receipt of the Construction Funds (as defined in Section 3 above), the Town 
shall sign off on all plot plans that comply with Town regulations, Ordinances, and design criteria for the 
lots within the Century Project.  Upon obtaining the plot plan sign-off, Century and any other owners of 
portions of the Century Project may proceed in obtaining building permits for the lots and constructing 
residences thereon.  The Town will not withhold its approval of any building permits or certificates of 
occupancy based on the status of completion of the Access Road; however, Century shall not apply for any 
final inspection or any certificate of occupancy on any of the residences until the Sewer Line, and the entire 
sewer system for the Century Project  are completed in the Town’s sole discretion.  During construction, 
Century will use commercially reasonable best efforts and industry best practices to prevent Century Project 
construction debris from the entering into the Sewer Line.  Upon completion of all residences within the 
Property, Century will run a closed-circuit video camera through the entire Century Project sewer system 
and the entire length of the Sewer Line, and remove any debris that is show on the video feed.  If, debris is 
found within the entire sewer system including the Sewer Line during the course of construction or upon 
running the camera through the Sewer Line  and Century does not remove it within ten (10) days after 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

5 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

notice from the Town, then the Town may have it removed and deduct the costs incurred from the 
Construction Funds in accordance with Section 3.   

 
7. Indemnity. Century hereby agrees to defend and hold the Town and its elected and 

appointed officers, agents, employees and representatives harmless from claims, costs and liabilities for 
any personal injury, death or property damage which arises, directly or indirectly, as a result of the 
construction of the Access Road, Sewer Line or operations performed under this Agreement by Century or 
by Century’s contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, whether such operations were performed by 
Century or any of Century’s contractors, subcontractors, by any one or more persons directly or indirectly 
employed by, or acting as agent for Century or any of Century’s contractors or subcontractors. 

 
In addition, Century shall defend Town and its elected and appointed representatives, officers, agents and 
employees against actions arising out of such personal injury, death, or property damage which is caused, 
or alleged to have been caused, by reason of Century’s activities in connection with the Century Project.  
Century further agrees to defend and save and hold Town harmless from any and all claims, costs and 
liabilities arising as a result of any legal action or proceeding brought against the Town which challenges 
the validity of this Agreement, any of the terms and conditions herein, the Access Road approvals, or the 
sufficiency of environmental review pursuant to CEQA as applicable to the Access Road. 
 
This hold harmless agreement applies to all damages or claims for damages suffered or alleged to have 
been suffered by reason of the operations referred to in this section regardless of whether or not the Town 
prepared, supplied or approved plans or specifications, or both, for the Century Project and/or Access Road. 

 
8. Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or equitable act, 

action or other proceeding instituted by a third party, other governmental entity or official challenging the 
validity of any provision of this Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending said action 
or proceeding.  In the event Town and Century are unable to select mutually agreeable legal counsel to 
defend such action or proceeding, each party may select its own legal counsel, although Century shall be 
responsible for all Town costs incurred in relation to defending against such an action or proceeding, as 
further provided for in Section 7 of this Agreement. 

 
9. Default; Remedies.  If either party fails to fully perform any of its obligations hereunder, 

and such failure continues for thirty (30) days following notice thereof in writing from the non-defaulting 
party (or any other cure period that is specifically provided for above), then the non-defaulting party shall 
have the right to file an action for specific performance.  Without limiting the foregoing, each party 
expressly waives its rights to receive consequential, incidental, or punitive damages or damages for lost 
profits under this Agreement.   

 
10. Notices.  All notices and demands which either party is required or desires to give to the 

other shall be given in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested with appropriate postage paid, by 
personal delivery, by private overnight courier service to the address set forth below for the respective party, 
or by email at the email address below (provided the sender obtains confirmation of receipt); however, if 
any party gives notice of a change of name or address or number, notices to that party shall thereafter be 
given as demanded in that notice.  All tenders and notices shall be effective as of (i) the date received if 
personally delivered, sent by email, or delivered by a private contract carrier that assures same- or next-day 
delivery and provides a receipt or (ii) the date received or rejected if sent by U.S. certified mail, return 
receipt requested.  
  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

6 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

Town’s Address:  
                         
Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District 
1800 Willow Lake Road 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
Attention:  Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
Email:  dbreitstein@todb.ca.gov 
 
 
Century’s Address:     
  
Century Communities of California, LLC 
6700 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 210 
Pleasanton, CA 94566 
Attention:  Daniel Turpin 
Email:  dan.turpin@centurycommunities.com  
 
Century Communities of California, LLC 
c/o Century Communities 
4695 MacArthur Court, Suite 350  
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
Attention:  Holly Traube Cordova, Esq. 
Email: Holly.Cordova@centurycommunties.com   
 
 

11. Miscellaneous. 
 

a. Amendments. This Agreement can be amended only by a written agreement 
executed by both the Town and Century. 

b. No Agency, Joint Venture, or Partnership. It is specifically understood and agreed 
to by and between the parties hereto that:  (1)  the Century Project is a private development; (2) the Town 
has no interest or responsibilities for, or duty to, third parties concerning any improvements until such time, 
and only until such time, that the Town accepts the same pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or in 
connection with the various Century Project approvals; (3) Century shall have full power over and exclusive 
control of the Century Project and Access Road herein described, subject only to the limitations and 
obligations of Century under the Century Project approvals and this Agreement; and (4) Town and Century 
hereby renounce the existence of any form of agency relationship, joint venture or partnership between the 
Town and Century and agree that nothing contained herein or in any document executed in connection 
herewith shall be construed as creating any such relationship between Town and Century. 

c. Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement or 
the application of any provision of this Agreement to a particular situation is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the 
application of this Agreement to other situations, shall continue in full force and effect unless amended or 
modified by mutual consent of the parties. 

d. Assignment. Upon Town's written consent, Century shall have the right to assign 
or transfer all or any portion of its interests, rights or obligations under this Agreement and the Project 
Approvals to third parties acquiring an interest or estate in the Project and/or Project Site, or any portion 
thereof including, but not limited to, purchasers or long-term ground lessees of individual lots, parcels, or 

G1-2 

mailto:dbreitstein@todb.ca.gov
mailto:dan.turpin@centurycommunities.com
mailto:Holly.Cordova@centurycommunties.com


QB\93748521.2 
 

7 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

any lots, homes or facilities located within the Project Site.  Century shall give at least thirty (30) days' prior 
written notice to the Town of its intention to assign or transfer any of its interests, rights or obligations 
under this Agreement.  If all or any portion of the Project or Project Site is transferred by Century to any 
person or entity, the transferee shall succeed to all of the Century's rights and obligations under this 
Agreement as they affect the right to proceed with the development of that transferred portion of the Project 
or Project Site and the transferee shall automatically assume all obligations of Century, past, present and 
future, hereunder which relates to the transferred Property.  Unless Century is released in writing by Town, 
a transfer of all or any part of the Project Site to any other person or entity shall not release Century from 
any obligation under this Agreement. 

e. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  

f. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in one or 
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  The parties may sign and transmit this Agreement and any 
amendments thereto by PDF or other electronic means, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, and 
each party's signature on a PDF or other electronic transmission of this Agreement and electronic signatures 
on this Agreement and any amendment shall be deemed to be valid and binding upon the parties and 
considered an original signature with the same binding effect as an original signature on this Assignment 
and any amendments.   

 
[signatures on next page] 

 
  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

8 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date.  
 
CENTURY: TOWN: 

CENTURY COMMUNITIES OF CALIFORNIA, 
LLC a Delaware limited liability company 
 

 
By:   ____________________________  
Name:  Daniel Turpin 
Its:        Vice President 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT, a political subdivision of 
the State of California 
 

By:   ___________________________  
Name:__________________________ 
Its:_____________________________ 
 
 

  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF CENTURY PROPERTY 

 
Real property in unincorporated County of Contra Costa, State of California, described as follows: 
 
TRACT ONE: 
 
Lots 1 through 67, inclusive, and Parcels A, B, C, D, E, F and G of Subdivision 9278 – Newport Pointe, as 
designated on the map recorded May 30, 2024 in Book 557 of Maps at Pages 1 through 10, Document No. 2024-
0050970. 
 
 
  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ACCESS ROAD PLAN 

 
  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

    Space above this line for Recorder's use 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

TITLE(S) 

 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
FOR PUBLIC USE, ACCESS AND SEWER LINE PURPOSES 

 

 

RECORDING REQUESTED ABD 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 

Town of Discovery Bay 
1800 Willow Lake Road 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
 
 
 

 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

Recording Fee: Exempt (Government Code Section 27383)  Space above this line for Recorder's use 

APN NO(S): 011-350-010 
 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX: Exempt (Revenue and Taxation Code Section 11922) 

The property is located in the Town of Discovery Bay 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 
FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS AND SEWER LINE PURPOSES 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, RECEIPT OF WHICH IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED,  

CENTURY COMMUNITIES OF CALIFORNIA, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

DO(ES) HEREBY IRREVOCABLY GRANT TO 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA  

 

AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR ACCESS TO AND THE USE  MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, 
OR REPLACEMENT OF AN ACCESS ROAD, STORM DRAIN CULVERT, RETAINING WALLS, MANHOLES 
AND SEWER LINE, AND ALL USES INCIDENT THERETO, UPON, OVER,  UNDER AND ACROSS THE 
REAL PROPERTY IN THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A” AND SHOWN IN THE ATTACHED 
EXHIBIT “B”. 

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED IN COUNTERPARTS, EACH OF WHICH SHALL BE 
DEEMED AN ORIGINAL, BUT ALL OF WHICH TAKEN TOGETHER SHALL CONSTITUTE ONE AND 
THE SAME INSTRUMENT.   
 

GRANTOR:  

CENTURY COMMUNITIES OF CALIFORNIA, 
a limited liability company 

 

By:________________________________ 

Name:  Daniel Turpin 

ACCEPTED BY GRANTEE: 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, a political 
subdivision of the State of California  

 

By:______________________________________ 

Name:___________________________________ 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

 
Town of Discovery Bay 
1800 Willow Lake Road 
Discovery Bay, CA 94505 
 

 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

Title:     Vice President Title:____________________________________ 

 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of 
the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not 
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of   

On   before me,  , Notary Public, 
 Date Name of Notary 

personally appeared   
 Name(s) of Signer(s) 

 , 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under 
the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature   
 Place Notary Seal Above Signature of Notary Public 
 
 

} 

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

EXHIBIT A  TO  
GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC USE AND SEWER LINE PURPOSES 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA 

 
(to be attached) 

  

G1-2 



QB\93748521.2 
 

 

  
1762830-2 
#93748521v2<ACTIVE> - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v3 
 

EXHIBIT B  TO  
GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC USE AND SEWER LINE PURPOSES 

 
DEPICTION OF EASEMENT AREA 

 
(to be attached) 

 

G1-2 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action to Amend the Herwit Engineering General Services Contract to  
  add $50,000. 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2025 
 
Prepared By: Aaron Goldsworthy, Water & Wastewater Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
To amend the contract and add $50,000 to the Herwit Engineering General Service Contract Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
In June 2024, during the Board of Directors Meeting held on June 19th, 2024, the Board approved the General 
Manager to enter into a General Services Contract Agreement with Herwit Engineering Consultants for an amount 
not to exceed $75,000.  
 
Since the execution of this agreement, the Town has received multiple requests from developers for engineering 
information related to their various development projects. The purpose of these services is to assist the Town and 
potential developers in identifying essential information needed to design and construct developments that comply 
with the Town’s specifications for water and wastewater infrastructure and services.  
 
However, since the Town did not have a separate developer contract with Herwit Engineering for the various 
infrastructure studies, all development work was billed against the general services contract. As a result, the 
contract funds were exhausted within six months of being executed.  
 
The total billed for developer services amounted to $52,800, and all of these funds are reimbursable by the 
developers.  
 
Staff is requesting an amendment to the Herwit Engineering general services contract to add $50,000. In the next 
fiscal year, the Town plans to implement two separate contracts as follows:  
 
1. A Standard General Services Contract for Engineering Services.  
2. A Developer Services Contract, under which all expenses incurred will be reimbursed by the developers. 
 
Recommended action: To amend the contract and add $50,000 to the Herwit Engineering General Service 
Contract Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$50,000 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
G2 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM:  
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. 2024-2025 Herwit Engineering General Service Agreement June 19th, 2024. 
 



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025 Page 1 
1472807-1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AND

HERWIT ENGINEERING
FOR

DISTRICT ENGINEER – ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
EXTENTION FY 2024-2025 

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2024, 
by and between the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (hereinafter “District”) whose 
address is 1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, California 94505, and HERWIT ENGINEERING 
SERVICES(“CONSULTANT”). 

RECITALS 

A. District has determined that it requires the following consultant services from
CONSULTANT: Description - name of project.

B. CONSULTANT represents that it is willing to accept responsibility for performing such
PROJECT in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT agrees that in the event of any conflict or inconsistency in the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and CONSULTANT’S scope of work, that such conflict or inconsistency shall be resolved as 
provided in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, and in light of the circumstances outlined in the Recitals, which are incorporated fully herein by 
this reference, the District and CONSULTANT agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT

1. DEFINITIONS

1.1. “Scope of Work”: Such consultant services as are generally set forth in consultant’s scope 
of work, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  

1.2. “Approved Fee Schedule”:  Such compensation rates as set forth in Consultant’s
fee schedule attached hereto as part of Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  

1.3. “Commencement Date”: July 1, 2024. 

1.4. “Expiration Date”: Final deliverables by June 30, 2025. 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 2 
1472807-1 

 

 

2. TERM 
 

 The Term of this Agreement shall commence at 12:00 a.m. on the Commencement Date and shall 
expire at 11:59 p.m. on the Expiration Date unless extended by written agreement of the parties or 
terminated earlier in accordance with Section 14 (“Termination”) below.   

 

3. CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 
 

3.1. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work identified in the Scope of Work.  District shall have 
the right to request, in writing, changes in the Scope of Work.  Any such changes mutually 
agreed upon by the parties, and any corresponding increase or decrease in compensation, shall 
be incorporated by written amendment to this Agreement.   In no event shall the total 
compensation and costs payable to CONSULTANT under this Agreement exceed the sum of 
$75,000.00 unless specifically approved in advance and in writing by District. 

3.2. CONSULTANT shall complete all Work arising out of this Agreement no later than the 
Expiration Date. 

3.3. CONSULTANT shall perform all work to the highest professional standards of Consultant’s 
profession and in a manner reasonably satisfactory to District.  CONSULTANT shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, including the conflict of 
interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act 
(Government Code Section 81000 et seq.). 

3.4. CONSULTANT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel, 
material, appliances, equipment, and tools required to perform the Work identified in the 
Scope of Work.  All such Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under its 
supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be qualified to perform such Work.  
The District shall be Consultant’s project administrators and shall have direct responsibility 
for management and coordination of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. District 
shall not direct, control or supervise Consultant’s employees or sub-consultants in the 
performance of the Scope of Work set forth in this Agreement. 

3.5. To the extent applicable, CONSULTANT shall provide progress copies of drawings, reports, 
specifications and other necessary information to the District and other engineers for 
coordination and review. 

3.6. CONSULTANT shall strictly observe and comply with applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on the safety of persons or 
properties or their protection from damage, injury, or loss.  Without limiting the foregoing, 
CONSULTANT shall comply with all requirements, regulations, orders, and directives 
promulgated under the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, the California 
Occupational Safety and Health Act, and the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic 
Enforcement Act of 1988. 

 

 

  

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 3 
1472807-1 

 

4. COMPENSATION 
 

4.1. District agrees to compensate CONSULTANT for the Work provided under this Agreement, 
and CONSULTANT agrees to accept in full satisfaction for such Work, payment in 
accordance with the Approved Fee Schedule.   

4.2. CONSULTANT shall submit to District an invoice, on a monthly basis or less frequently, for 
the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement.  Each invoice shall itemize the Work 
performed during the billing period and the amount due.  Within ten business days of receipt 
of each invoice, District shall notify CONSULATNT in writing of any disputed amounts 
included on the invoice.  Within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, District 
shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  District shall not withhold 
applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT. 

4.3. Additional Work requested by District and not included in the Scope of Work may be required 
by the District.  Such additional Work shall be performed only in accordance with Change 
Orders, authorized and issued by District or District’s designated representative.  Each Change 
Order shall list the scope of Work to be performed, state the time within which the Work is to 
be completed, and designate any special conditions. Payments for any additional Work 
requested by District shall be made to CONSULTANT by District on a time-and-materials 
basis using the Approved Fee Schedule, unless otherwise stated in the Change Order.   

 

5. OWNERSHIP OF WRITTEN PRODUCTS 
 

5.1. All reports, documents or other written material (“written products”) developed by 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement shall be and remain the property of 
District without restriction or limitation upon its use or dissemination by District.  
CONSULTANT may take and retain copies of such written products as desired, but no such 
written products shall be the subject of a copyright application by CONSULTANT. District 
shall indemnify CONSULTANT from any liability arising from use of documents in 
connection with the Scope of Work identified in this Agreement. 

 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

6.1. CONSULTANT is, and shall at all times remain as to District, a wholly independent 
contractor.  CONSULTANT shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation, or liability on 
behalf of District or otherwise to act on behalf of District as an agent.  Neither District nor any 
of its agents shall have control over the conduct of CONSULTANT or any of Consultant’s 
employees, except as set forth in this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not represent that it 
is, or that any of its agents or employees are, in any manner employees of District. 
CONSULTANT is not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded District employees, including, 
but not limited to, disability, unemployment or other insurance, or workers’ compensation. 

 
 
 
 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 4 
1472807-1 

7. CONFIDENTIALITY  
 

7.1. All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or received by 
CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed confidential and 
shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by District.  District 
shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required.  Upon request, all District data shall 
be returned to District upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

8. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

8.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend  District, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all 
claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and 
injury to any property to the extent caused by any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or 
otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT or any of its officers, 
employees, agents, or subconsultants in the performance of this Agreement.  Such costs and 
expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of District’s choice.   

8.2. District shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due District from CONSULTANT as a 
result of Consultant’s failure to pay District promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Section 8 and related to Consultant’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

8.3. The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Section 8 will not be limited by the provisions 
of any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT expressly waives any 
statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to District, its officers, agents, employees 
and volunteers. 

8.4. CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to 
those set forth here in this Section 8 from each and every subconsultant or any other person or 
entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from 
others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend District, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against 
any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any 
person and injury to any property to the extent caused by any alleged intentional, reckless, 
negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of Consultant’s subcontractors or 
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred by counsel of District’s choice.     

8.5. District does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by District, or the deposit with District, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be 
applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 

 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 5 
1472807-1 

9. INSURANCE 
 

9.1. During the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall carry, maintain, and keep in full 
force and effect insurance against claims for death or injuries to persons or damages to 
property that may arise from or in connection with Consultant’s performance of this 
Agreement.   Such insurance shall be of the types and in the amounts as set forth below: 

9.1.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000), per occurrence and in the aggregate, including 
products and operations hazard, contractual insurance, broad form property damage, 
independent contractors, personal injury, underground hazard, and explosion and 
collapse hazard where applicable.  

9.1.2. Automobile Liability Insurance for vehicles used in connection with the performance 
of this Agreement with minimum limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

9.1.3. Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by the laws of the State of California. 

9.1.4. Professional Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence.  

9.2. CONSULTANT shall require each of its subconsultants to maintain insurance coverage that 
meets all of the requirements of this Agreement.  

9.3. The policy or policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by an insurer admitted in 
the State of California and with a rating of at least A:VII in the latest edition of Best’s 
Insurance Guide. 

9.4. CONSULTANT agrees that if it does not keep the aforesaid insurance in full force and 
effect, District may either (i) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) take out the 
necessary insurance and pay, at Consultant’s expense, the premium thereon.  

9.5. At all times during the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall maintain on file with 
District a certificate or certificates of insurance showing that the aforesaid policies are in 
effect in the required amounts and naming the District and its officers, employees, agents 
and volunteers as additional insureds under Commercial General Liability.    
CONSULTANT shall, prior to commencement of work under this Agreement, file with 
District such certificate(s). 

9.6. CONSULTANT shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein expiring 
during the term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies 
providing at least the same coverage.  Such proof will be furnished at least two weeks prior 
to the expiration of the coverages.  

9.7. The general liability and automobile policies of insurance required by this Agreement shall 
contain an endorsement naming District and its officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
as additional insureds.  All of the policies required under this Agreement shall contain an 
endorsement providing that the policies cannot be canceled or reduced except on thirty days’ 
prior written notice to District. 

 

 

9.8. Commercial General Liability insurance provided by CONSULTANT shall be primary to 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 6 
1472807-1 

any coverage available to District.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District 
and/or its officers, employees, agents or volunteers, shall be in excess of Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it.   

9.9. All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not prohibit 
CONSULTANT, and Consultant’s employees, agents or subcontractors/subconsultants, 
from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all 
rights of subrogation against the District.    

9.10. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.  
At the option of District, CONSULTANT shall either reduce or eliminate the deductibles or 
self-insured retentions with respect to District, or CONSULTANT shall procure a bond 
guaranteeing payment of losses and expenses. 

9.11. Procurement of insurance by CONSULTANT shall not be construed as a limitation of 
Consultant’s liability or as full performance of Consultant’s duties to indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend under Section 8 of this Agreement. 

 

10. MUTUAL COOPERATION 
 

10.1. District shall provide CONSULTANT with all pertinent data, documents and other requested 
information as is reasonably available for the proper performance of Consultant’s services 
under this Agreement. 

10.2. In the event any claim or action is brought against District relating to Consultant’s 
performance in connection with this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall render any 
reasonable assistance that District may require. 

 

11. RECORDS AND INSPECTIONS 
 

11.1. CONSULTANT shall maintain full and accurate records with respect to all matters covered 
under this Agreement for a period of three years after the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement.  District shall have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, 
during normal business hours.  District shall further have the right to audit such records, to 
make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, and 
activities. 

 

12. NOTICES 
 

12.1. Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be deemed received 
on:  (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand, facsimile or overnight courier service during 
Consultant’s and District’s regular business hours; or (ii) on the fifth business day following 
deposit in the United States mail if delivered by mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses listed 
below (or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing). 

 
 

If to District: 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 7 
1472807-1 

 
Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
Attn:  General Manager 
1800 Willow Lake Road 
Discovery Bay, CA  94505 
Telephone: (925) 634-1131 
Facsimile: (925) 513-2705 
 
With courtesy copy to: 
 
Andy Pinasco, General Counsel for Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
Neumiller & Beardslee 
P.O. Box 20 
Stockton, CA 95201 
Telephone: (209) 948-8200 
 
If to CONSULTANT: 
 
HERWIT ENGINEERING 
6200 Center Street, Suite 310 
Clayton, CA 94517 
Telephone: 925-672-6599 

 

13. SURVIVING COVENANTS 
 

13.1. To the extent required by applicable law, the parties agree that the covenants contained in 
Section 7, Section 8, Paragraph 10.2 and Section 11 of this Agreement shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

14. TERMINATION 

 

14.1. District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason on five calendar days’ 
written notice to CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement for any reason on thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to District.  
CONSULTANT agrees to cease all work under this Agreement on or before the effective 
date of any notice of termination.  All District data, documents, objects, materials or other 
tangible things shall be returned to District upon the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 

14.2. If District terminates this Agreement due to no fault or failure of performance by 
CONSULTANT, then CONSULTANT shall be paid based on the work satisfactorily 
performed at the time of termination.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to receive 
more than the amount that would be paid to CONSULTANT for the full performance of the 
services required by this Agreement. 

  
  

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 8 
1472807-1 

15. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

15.1. CONSULTANT shall not delegate, transfer, subcontract or assign its duties or rights 
hereunder, either in whole or in part, without District’s prior written consent, and any attempt 
to do so shall be void and of no effect.  District shall not be obligated or liable under this 
Agreement to any party other than CONSULTANT. 

15.2. In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any 
employee, subconsultant, subcontractor, or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical 
or mental disability or medical condition. 

15.3. CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the regulations of District’s “Conflict of Interest 
Code.”  Said Code is in accordance with the requirements of the Political Reform Act of 
1974.  

CONSULTANT covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not have any 
interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance 
of work required hereunder.  The term “conflict” shall include, as a minimum, the 
definition of a “conflict of interest” under the California Fair Political Practices Act 
and the Town of Discovery Bay Conflict of Interest Code, as that term is applied to 
Consultants.   

15.4. The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any paragraph 
thereof, are descriptive only and for convenience in reference to this Agreement.  Should 
there be any conflict between such heading, and the section or paragraph thereof at the head 
of which it appears, the section or paragraph thereof, as the case may be, and not such 
heading, shall control and govern in the construction of this Agreement.  Masculine or 
feminine pronouns shall be substituted for the neuter form and vice versa, and the plural 
shall be substituted for the singular form and vice versa, in any place or places herein in 
which the context requires such substitution(s). 

15.5. The waiver by District or CONSULTANT of any breach of any term, covenant or condition 
herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant or condition or 
of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein 
contained.  No term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been 
waived by District or CONSULTANT unless in writing. 

15.6. CONSULTANT shall not be liable for any failure to perform if CONSULTANT presents 
acceptable evidence, in District’s sole judgment that such failure was due to causes beyond 
the control and without the fault or negligence of CONSULTANT. 

15.7. Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in 
equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other 
right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity, by 
statute, or otherwise.  The exercise, the commencement of the exercise, or the forbearance 
of the exercise by any party of any one or more of such rights, powers or remedies shall not 
preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by such party of any of all of such other rights, 
powers or remedies.  In the event legal action shall be necessary to enforce any term, 
covenant or condition herein contained, the party prevailing in such action, whether reduced 
to judgment or not, shall be entitled to its reasonable court costs, including accountants’ fees, 

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 9 
1472807-1 

if any, and attorneys’ fees expended in such action.  The venue for any litigation shall be 
Contra Costa County, California. 

15.8. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then such term or provision 
shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary to cure such invalidity or 
unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be enforceable.  In such event, the remainder 
of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances 
other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, 
and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 

15.9. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. 

15.10. All documents referenced as exhibits in this Agreement are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this 
Agreement and the provisions of any document incorporated herein by reference, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.  This instrument contains the entire Agreement 
between District and CONSULTANT with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.  
No other prior oral or written agreements are binding upon the parties.  Amendments hereto 
or deviations herefrom shall be effective and binding only if made in writing and executed 
by District and CONSULTANT. 

 

TO EFFECTUATE THIS AGREEMENT, the parties have caused their duly authorized 
representatives to execute this Agreement. 
 
Signatures contained on next page 
 
/   /  / 
 
/   /  / 
 
/   /  / 
 
/   /  / 
 
  

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 10 
1472807-1 

 
“District” 
Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Date: _____________, 2024 

“CONSULTANT” 
Herwit Engineering 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        
Print Name:____________________ 
 
Date: ________________ , 2024 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Andy Pinasco 
District Counsel 

 

 
  

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 11 
1472807-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
APPROVED FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

G2-1



Herwit - Engineering Support Services Extension FY 2024-2025  Page 12 
1472807-1 

 

G2-1



 
 
EXIBIT A - Dist-Eng-SCOPE-R1.doc  Page 1 of 4 

 EXHIBIT A 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES  
 FOR THE 

 
DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

The purpose of this Scope of Work is to provide engineering support services, on an as- needed 
consulting bases, as District Engineer for the Discovery Bay Community Services District. 
 
CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 
 
The CONSULTANT shall perform the following tasks in carrying out these services and shall 
perform all services in a manner consistent with the standards of the industry. 
 
TASK 1- ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES AS DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 

1.1. PLAN CHECKING:  Consultant shall review all subdivision plans and construction 
documents for wastewater facilities ultimately owned by the District.  Consultant shall 
review, and return signed copies of each submittal to the District for distribution to 
project applicants. Where possible, Consultant’s comments shall be summarized on a 
comment sheet attached to one submittal copy.   
 
1.1.1. Consultant shall review construction documents for construction materials and 

methods acceptable to the District as they relate to the construction of wastewater 
facilities only, including pipe lines, sewers systems, wastewater plants, 
wastewater pumping stations, as well as other ancillary facilities directly 
supporting wastewater facilities such as electrical and control buildings.   
 

1.1.2. The following submittals will not be reviewed by the Consultant:  Temporary 
Construction Submittals including shoring submittals. 
 

1.1.3. The Consultant shall maintain a file of all project plans and submittals. 
 

1.1.4. The Consultant’s review of plans and submittals shall be completed, and review 
comments sent to the District within twenty-five (25) calendar days following the 
receipt of the submittal in the Consultant’s office.  If for any reason the review 
cannot be performed within this twenty-five (25) day calendar day period, 
Consultant shall notify the District and give reason for the delay. 
 

1.1.5. The Consultant’s review is not intended as acceptance of the work if plans and 
submittals contain errors, omissions, or inconsistencies not discovered by 

G2-1



 
 
EXIBIT A - Dist-Eng-SCOPE-R1.doc  Page 2 of 4 

Consultant, nor is the review intended to relieve the submitting applicant of his 
full responsibility for proper engineering and design, nor is the review intended to 
ensure or guarantee lack of errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in submitted 
construction documents. 
 

1.2. FIELD INSPECTIONS:  Consultant shall provide field inspection services including the 
following: 
 

1.2.1. The Consultant shall inspect the construction of wastewater facilities including 
sewers, manholes, pipelines, pump stations, treatment plants, and support 
facilities as requested by the District. 
 

1.2.2. The Consultant shall be present during a single final project “walk-through” 
inspection with the District.  Consultant shall participate in review and 
development of final inspection “punch-list.”    
 

1.3. TESTING, REVIEW, and WITNESSING:   The Consultant will perform review of 
procedures and witness testing of mechanical and electrical facilities including the 
following: 
 

1.3.1. The Consultant shall witness the testing of wastewater facilities including 
mechanical and electrical equipment as requested by the District. 
 

1.4. ATENDANCE AT MEETINGS:  The Consultant shall attend meetings as District 
Engineer including the following 
 

1.4.1. Construction Meetings.  Consultant shall attend and participate in certain project 
meetings at project sites in order to keep abreast of construction activities and be 
involved in questions which may arise concerning construction quality as 
requested by the District.  During construction site visits, Consultant shall observe 
construction progress and shall discuss with Construction Manager relevant 
construction issues.   
 

1.4.2. Special Meetings.  CONSULTANT shall attend special meetings to discuss and 
assist in resolving any construction issues as requested by the District. 
 

1.4.3. District Board Presentations.  Attend and update District Board as requested. 
 

1.5. GENERAL ADMINESTRATIVE SERVICES.  Consultant shall furnish general 
administrative services to remain current on District projects and to provide for 
organized execution of work and retrieval of information.  Such services shall include 
the following:  
 

1.5.1. Review and route, as appropriate, Project correspondence furnished by the 
Construction Manager and other entities.  Maintain a logical and retrievable 

G2-1



 
 
EXIBIT A - Dist-Eng-SCOPE-R1.doc  Page 3 of 4 

filling system. 
 

1.5.2. Identify subject on correspondence and transmittals in accordance with a subject 
identification procedure established by the Construction Manager. 
 

1.5.3. Provide DISTRICT each month during the term of this Project, a brief written 
progress report on the services performed.  Such reports shall include the 
cumulative percentage of the overall budget expended hereunder, a brief 
description of the work performed during the reporting period, and such other 
information as may be appropriate. 
 

1.6. PROJECT DESIGN: The Consultant shall prepare plans and specifications for the 
construction of wastewater facilities to support District activities as requested by the 
District.  Consultant shall prepare a separate scope and fee estimate for such services to 
be approved by the District.  When design services are performed, they shall be 
completed in the following manner: 
 

1.6.1. CONSULTANT shall prepare a set of civil, mechanical, structural, and electrical 
design drawings and technical specifications (CSI format) suitable for assignment 
by the owner to a general contractor for construction. 
 

1.6.2. The drawings shall conform to Consultant’s typical CADD guidelines. 
 

1.6.3. Plans and specifications shall include the technical information required for the 
construction of the civil, mechanical, electrical, and structural facilities. 
 

1.6.4. Preparation of the plans and specifications shall include the submittal of 30 and 
90 percent complete documents for review by the District, as well as 100 percent 
complete documents, incorporating the Districts comments. 
 

1.6.5. Consultant shall deliver the reproducible technical specifications and construction 
drawings for the each project.  Electronic files shall also be delivered to the 
District. 
 

1.6.6. CONSULTANT shall prepare an estimate for the construction cost of the work at 
the 30 percent and 90 percent completion stages of the project. 
 

1.6.7. Bid Period Assistance: Consultant shall assist the District prior to awarding 
construction contracts by:   
 

1.6.7.1. Responding to questions from prospective General Contractor’s prior to 
OWNER awarding contract. 
 

1.6.7.2. Preparing addenda. 
 

G2-1



 
 
EXIBIT A - Dist-Eng-SCOPE-R1.doc  Page 4 of 4 

1.6.7.3. OWNER shall be responsible for distribution of original documents and 
addenda to prospective General Contractor’s.   
 

1.6.8. Engineering Deliverables:  Consultant shall provide the following deliverables as 
part of design services: 
 

1.6.8.1. 30 percent (30%) design plans and technical specifications (2 copies). 
 

1.6.8.2. 90 percent (90%) design plans and technical specifications (2 copies). 
 

1.6.8.3. One hundred percent (100 %) design plans and technical specifications 
(reproducible originals). 
 

1.6.8.4.  Addenda to plans and specifications (reproducible originals). 
 

1.7. PROCESS ASSISTANCE:  Consultant shall inspect and make recommendations for 
improvements to wastewater collection and treatment systems as requested by the 
District.  
 

1.8. PERMIT AND PUBLIC AGENCY ASSISTANCE: Consultant shall assist the 
District in negotiating with and permitting facilities through other public agencies as 
requested by the District.  Such work to include Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
review, permit negotiations, permit applications, and meetings and correspondence 
with other public agencies.  
 

1.9. Assist the District with water facilities or other facilities as requested. 
 

PROJECT PERSONNEL  
 

2. Consultant shall assign the following project personnel to this project: 
 
2.1. Kurt A. Gardner, a registered civil engineer, shall serve as project manager for the 

Consultant and shall personally oversee the performance of Consultant’s Services.  
Mr. Gardner shall be responsible for civil engineering services. 
 

2.2. Gregory P. Harris, a registered mechanical engineer, shall be responsible for 
mechanical engineering services and civil engineering services under the direction of 
the project manager. 
 

2.3. Subconsultants: Consultant shall hire subconsultants in other engineering disciplines 
as required to assist in performing support services under this contractor. 

G2-1



HERWIT
        ENGINEERING

HERWIT ENGINEERING

7/01/24 - 06/30/25  FEE SCHEDULE

Personnel Hourly Rate

Engineering  (Process, Mechanical, Civil) $240.00
Drafting $120.00
Word Processing $105.00

Subconsultants

Engineering  (Electrical - Structural) $180.00

Other Direct Costs

Travel, $/mi Federal Reimbursement
Subconsultants Cost + 10%
Internal Printing @ direct cost
Misc. travel and other indirect expenses @ direct cost

R:\Herwit Support\Financials\Fee Schedules\2024 Fee Schedule DBCSD.xlsx

6200 Center Street, Ste. 310
Clayton, CA 94517
PHN (925) 672-6599
FAX (925) 672-6051 1 of 1

G2-1



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Title: Discussion and Possible Action to Set the Date and Time of the 2025 Annual Board Workshop. 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2025 
 
Prepared By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Set date and time for 2025 Annual Board Workshop.  Staff recommendation is March 20, 2025.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Each year the Board schedules an interactive workshop with staff to review Town accomplishments and future 
direction.   
 
Last year, the Annual Board Workshop was held Thursday, March 14, 2024 at 4:00pm.  
 
Staff recommends March 20, 2025, at 4:00 PM for the next Board Workshop.  This date and time allows staff the 
time necessary to prepare for the workshop and take input from the Board.  The 4:00pm time frame has in the past, 
been the most convenient time period for all Board Members to attend. Staff estimates that the workshop will not 
last longer than two hours. 
 
Primary Recommended Date:  March 20, 2025 
 
Alternative Dates for Consideration:  March 26, 2025, or March 27, 2025 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS FOR THIS ITEM: 
 
February 2, 2017 Annual Board Workshop for 2017 
March 1, 2018 Annual Board Workshop for 2018 
March 7, 2019 Annual Board Workshop for 2019 
March 5, 2020 Annual Board Workshop for 2020 
March 4, 2021 Annual Board Workshop for 2021 
March 24, 2022 Annual Board Workshop for 2022 
March 16, 2023 Annual Board Workshop for 2023 
March 14, 2024 Annual Board Workshop for 2024 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 
G3 

 



LANDSCAPE 
UPDATES

JANUARY 2025

BOD 2/5/2025

WINTER 
CLEAN-UP



POE DRIVE

CORNELL PARK



SOUTH POINT 
ISLANDS, #1

SOUTH POINT 
ISLANDS, #2



CABRILLO POINT 
ISLANDS, #1

CABRILLO POINT 
ISLANDS, #2



SNEAK-A-PEEK 
DISCOVERY POINT 
ISLANDS, #1 & #2



K1



K1



K2



K2



K3



K3



K4


	Agenda - BOD 02 05 25
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C1 - DRAFT Minutes - BOD 01 15 25---approved by DB
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	G1 - Staff Report - Newport Pointe Access Road Agreement 2.5.2025 BOD
	G1-1 - XB_Sewer Access Road_2024.10.03PACKET
	G1-2 - Sewer Line Access Road Ag (Discovery Bay) v6 Final
	Town’s Address:
	Century’s Address:
	a. Amendments. This Agreement can be amended only by a written agreement executed by both the Town and Century.
	b. No Agency, Joint Venture, or Partnership. It is specifically understood and agreed to by and between the parties hereto that:  (1)  the Century Project is a private development; (2) the Town has no interest or responsibilities for, or duty to, thir...
	c. Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the application of any provision of this Agreement to a particular situation is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the re...
	d. Assignment. Upon Town's written consent, Century shall have the right to assign or transfer all or any portion of its interests, rights or obligations under this Agreement and the Project Approvals to third parties acquiring an interest or estate i...
	e. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.
	f. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The parties may sign and tra...
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT B
	RECORDING REQUESTED ABD
	WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
	Title(s)
	Grant of Easement
	for Public Use, access and SEWER LINE Purposes
	RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
	WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
	Grant of Easement
	for INGRESS AND EGRESS and sewer line Purposes
	century communities of california, llc, a delaware limited liability company

	Grant of Easement for Public Use and sewer line Purposes
	Grant of Easement for Public Use and sewer line Purposes

	G2 - Herwit Service Agreement 24.25 amendment 50k
	G2-1 - Herwit Engineering Contract FY 2024-2025 Fully Executed PACKET
	G3 - Staff Report - Board Workshop 02052025
	H1 - Landscape Presentation - January 2025 Work 2.5.2025 MtgPACKET
	K1 - BUSD - GRAVES 12 17 24
	K2 - CCC Airport Committee - GRAVES 12 05 24
	K3 - BUSD - GRAVES 01 23 25
	K4 - LAFCO - GRAVES 01 22 25
	Agenda - BOD 02 05 25.pdf
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT




